
Democratic Services 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
CRIME AND DISORDER COMMITTEE 

 
Tuesday 24 February 2026 at 7.30 pm 

 
Place: Council Chamber, Epsom Town Hall 

 
Online access to this meeting is available on YouTube: Link to online broadcast 

 
The members listed below are summoned to attend the Crime and Disorder Committee 
meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set out in this 
agenda. 
 

Councillor Alan Williamson (Chair) 
Councillor Tony Froud 
Councillor Shanice Goldman 
 

Councillor Christine Howells 
Councillor James Lawrence 
Councillor Graham Jones 
 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
Chief Executive 
 
For further information, please contact democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk or tel: 
01372 732000 
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

No emergency drill is planned to take place during the meeting. If the fire alarm sounds 
continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the building by the 
nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital 
that you follow their instructions.   

 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 

 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but 
move to the assembly point at Dullshot Green and await further instructions; and 

 Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so. 

 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLU1GWtI_OsxUcyTb2u4WGNNV7n-MGYVaZ


 

Public information 

Please note that this meeting will be held at the Town Hall, Epsom and will be available to observe 
live using free YouTube software. 

A link to the online address for this meeting is provided on the first page of this agenda. A limited number 
of seats will be available on a first-come first-served basis in the public gallery at the Town Hall. If you wish 
to observe the meeting from the public gallery, please arrive at the Town Hall reception before the start of 
the meeting. A member of staff will show you to the seating area. For further information please contact 
Democratic Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 732000. 

Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on the Council’s 
website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes. 

Agendas, reports and minutes for this Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov app for iPad, 
Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access information regarding this 
Committee, please email us at democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk. 

 

Exclusion of the Press and the Public 

There are no matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to disclose confidential 
or exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended). Should any such matters arise during the course of discussion of the below items or should the 
Chair agree to discuss any other such matters on the grounds of urgency, the Committee may wish to 
resolve to exclude the press and public by virtue of the private nature of the business to be transacted. 

 

Questions and statements from the Public 

Up to 30 minutes will be set aside for questions and statements from members of the public at meetings of 
this Committee. Any member of the public who lives, works, attends an educational establishment or owns 
or leases land in the Borough may ask a question or make a statement on matters within the Terms of 
Reference of the Committee. 

All questions must consist of one question only and cannot consist of multiple parts. Questions and 
statements cannot relate to planning or licensing committees matters, the personal affairs of an individual, 
or a matter which is exempt from disclosure or confidential under the Local Government Act 1972.  
Questions which in the view of the Chair are defamatory, offensive, vexatious or frivolous will not be 
accepted. Each question or statement will be limited to 3 minutes in length. 

If you wish to ask a question or make a statement at a meeting of this Committee, please contact 
Democratic Services at: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk 

Questions must be received in writing by Democratic Services by noon on the fifth working day before the 
day of the meeting. For this meeting this is Noon, Thursday 19 February. 

A written copy of statements must be received by Democratic Services by noon on the working day before 
the day of the meeting. For this meeting this is Noon, Monday 23 February. 

For more information on public speaking protocol at Committees, please see Annex 4.2 of the Epsom & 
Ewell Borough Council Operating Framework. 

 

Filming and recording of meetings 

The Council allows filming, recording and photography at its public meetings. By entering the Council 
Chamber and using the public gallery, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings. 

Members of the Press who wish to film, record or photograph a public meeting should contact the 
Council’s Communications team prior to the meeting by email at: communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk 
 
Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the room whilst filming nor 
should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting. The use of flash photography, 
additional lighting or any non-handheld devices, including tripods, will not be allowed.

mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/council/about-council/governance/Annex%204-2%20-%20Protocol%20Members%20of%20Public%20Speaking_1.pdf
mailto:communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC   
 
 To take any questions or statements from members of the Public. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To receive declarations of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or other 

registrable or non-registrable interests from Members in respect of any item to 
be considered at the meeting. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 
 The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting 

of the Committee held on 5 March 2025 (attached) and to authorise the Chair to 
sign them. 
 

4. SAFER EPSOM AND EWELL UPDATE  (Pages 7 - 60) 
 
 This report provides an update on content and progress of the Build phase of 

Safer Epsom and Ewell programme. 
 

5. ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR PLEDGE  (Pages 61 - 64) 
 
 This report recommends the Council renew the Anti-Social Behaviour Pledge. 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 

 
Epsom and Ewell Borough Council 

 
Minutes of the Meeting of the CRIME AND DISORDER COMMITTEE held at the 

Council Chamber, Epsom Town Hall on 5 March 2025 
 
 

   
  

PRESENT - 
 

 
Councillor Shanice Goldman (Chair); Councillors Tony Froud, Christine Howells, 
James Lawrence and Alan Williamson 
 
In Attendance:   Kelly Clifton-Sinclair (Temporary Chief Inspector, Surrey Police) and 
Tommy Pearson (Acting Borough Commander, Surrey Police) 
 
Officers present: Rod Brown (Head of Housing and Community), Oliver Nelson (Public 
Protection Manager) and Dan Clackson (Democratic Services Officer) 

 
 

   
 
 

5 QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  

No questions or statements were received from members of the public. 
 

6 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

No declarations were made by Members in respect of any item considered at the 
meeting. 
 

7 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

The Committee confirmed as a true record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 22 October 2024 and authorised the Chair to sign them. 
 

8 PSPO – ADOPTION OF A PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER  

The Committee received a report requesting consideration of the outcome of the 
public consultation and whether or not to recommend to Full Council the 
adoption of a new Public Spaces Protection Order for the Borough of Epsom & 
Ewell. 

The Committee considered the following matters: 

a) Public Response. The Committee considered that the proposed PSPO 
was well supported by the public, with 92% of people in support of the 
extension of the PSPO for a further 3 years, and 83% of people in favour 
of the PSPO boundary being made borough-wide. 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
 

Meeting of the Crime and Disorder Committee, 5 March 2025 2 

 

 
Epsom and Ewell Borough Council 

b) Representation from Seldom Heard Groups. In response to comments 
from a Member, the Chair stated that groups such as students and faith 
groups had been reached out to for responses to the consultation. The 
Public Protection Manager explained that ‘Buddy Up’, a charity 
organisation who provide support for young people, had submitted a 
response to the consultation and provided their views on the proposed 
PSPO in respect of the young people of the Borough. 

c) Confirmation of PSPO Boundary. In response to a query from a 
Member, the Chair confirmed that the boundary of the proposed PSPO 
would be borough-wide. 

Following consideration, the Committee unanimously resolved to: 

(1) Recommend to Full Council that the Head of Housing and 
Community be nominated and authorised to take all necessary steps 
to adopt the PSPO as it appears in appendix 7 of the report, in 
consultation with the Chair of the Crime and Disorder Committee. 

(2) Recommend to Full Council to confirm the amount of fixed penalty 
for this and for any future public space protection order breaches at 
£100, discounted to £80 if paid within 10 days. 

 

 
 
The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 7.41 pm 
 

 
COUNCILLOR SHANICE GOLDMAN (CHAIR) 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



Crime and Disorder Committee  
24 February 2026  

 

SAFER EPSOM AND EWELL BUILD PHASE UPDATE 

 

Head of Service: Rod Brown, Head of Housing & Community 

Report Author Rod Brown 

Wards affected: (All Wards); 

Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No 

If yes, reason urgent decision 
required: 

 

Appendices (attached):  Appendix 1 Clear Hold Build data profile 

Appendix 2 Surrey police CHB survey 
summary 

Appendix 3 Safer Epsom and Ewell Build 
phase plan 

 

Summary 

An update on content and progress of the Build phase of Safer Epsom and Ewell 
programme. 

 

 

Recommendation (s) 

The Committee is asked to: 

(1) Note content and progress of the Safer Epsom and Ewell programme. 

 

1 Reason for Recommendation 

1.1 The Council has an important role in working with police and other 
partners to support a safe environment for residents and businesses. 

1.2 This Committee has a remit to manage anti-social behaviour and tackle 
crime. 

2 Background 

2.1 The Safer Epsom and Ewell is a multiagency programme aimed at 
tackling Serious Organised Crime (SOC) and reducing anti-social 
behaviour (ASB) within a specified area of the borough 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Crime and Disorder Committee  
24 February 2026  

 

2.2 This programme is structured around a Home Office approach to tackling 
SOC known as Clear Hold Build (CHB). CHB is a place based operational 
framework which provides a multi-agency model for uniting the resources 
of the police, councils, partner agencies and the local community to tackle 
both the underlying causes and enablers of SOC, as well as the 
manifestation of harm it causes in a single joined up approach. 

2.3  CHB is composed of three discrete phases (abridged from Home Office 
guidance): 

 

Phase Activities Objectives Period 
covered 

Clear Interventions targeting 
members of Organised 
Criminal Gangs (OCG)s, 
County Lines, their 
networks and business 
interests and criminality 

Arrest and 
relentlessly disrupt 
OCGs and use 
regulatory powers 
to disrupt and 
impede.  

July 2025 to 
November 
2025 

Hold Interventions and counter 
measures and contingency 
plans to consolidate and 
stabilise Clear phase 

Stop OCGs and 
county lines and 
capitalise on 
vacuum created. 
Improve and 
sustain increased 
community 
confidence  

December 
2025 

Build Single whole system 
approach delivering 
community empowered 
interventions tackling 
drivers of crime 

Community more 
assertive, improved 
environment for 
residents with 
greater resilience 
and greater partner 
connectivity. 

January 2026 
– March 2026 

2.4 Clear phase is typically led by enhanced police activities with Hold being 
significantly police led with partner support. Build phase tends to be more 
community focussed with council and partners having more significant 
input. 

3  Safer Epsom and Ewell  

3.1 The geography for the Epsom and Ewell programme was developed 
considering recorded criminal data and with the recognition of the 
interplay between different areas across the borough.  

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



Crime and Disorder Committee  
24 February 2026  

 

3.2 The Safer Epsom and Ewell area centres on Epsom town extending to 
Watersedge and Longmead estates and NESCOT college. The crime 
types being focussed on are acquisitive crime (burglary, vehicle crime and 
theft) ASB and possession and supply of drugs. 

3.3 Prior to the launch of Safer Epsom and Ewell, Surrey police produced a 
profile of the borough highlighting the areas subject to recorded criminal 
activity. This profile is attached as Appendix 1. 

3.4 Also prior to safer Epsom and Ewell, Surrey police completed a survey of 
residents and those visiting the area about their concerns about crime and 
ASB and their feelings of safety in the borough. This survey is attached as 
Appendix 2. 

4 Build plan 

4.1 The police led on the earlier phases of Safer Epsom and Ewell with the 
council and partners being currently involved in the final build phase. This 
final phase of the programme is intended to conclude with the end of the 
current financial year. 

4.2 Informed by the survey results and the borough profile, the Build phase is 
developed around six key themes. Each theme is led by a significant 
partner active in that area.  

4.3 The six themes and their respective leads are: 

Theme Lead 

Housing Kirsten Pavitt (Town and Country Housing) 

ASB Sgt Pegg/Insp Pearson (Surrey police) 

Environmental Sam Whitehead (EEBC) 

Youth Voice Holly Ashby (SCC Adolescent Services) 

Women and Girls Sarah McLeod (North Surrey Domestic Abuse 
Service) 

Employment Sarah Watson (NESCOT) 

4.4 Progress is currently still underway on the Build phase. There are many 
different activities underway or planned which underpin the objectives set 
for each theme.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Crime and Disorder Committee  
24 February 2026  

 

4.5 This phase is supported by a Build Phase Plan which identifies objectives 
for Safer Epsom and Ewell and the strategic aims for Hold and Build along 
with objectives and headline performance measures for each theme. The 
Build Phase Plan is attached as Appendix 3.  

4.6 Performance towards these objectives will be reported after the end of the 
financial year along with a repeated survey by Surrey police to gauge the 
impact of Safer Epsom and Ewell.  

4.7 In addition to the partners work during Build phase, the office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) has funded two projects which are 
intended to avoid young people becoming involved in SOC and ASB.  

4.8 The two projects funded are an allocation to New Era Academy Training 
(NEAT), based in Court Recreation Ground to facilitate a further 12 
months of activities for youth diversion purposes and, subject to final 
agreement, Engage Lime who are recommended by the Home Office to 
operate programmes to develop skills in younger people so as to promote 
positive behaviour change and build better futures. 

5 Risk Assessment 

Legal or other duties 

5.1 Equality Impact Assessment 

5.1.1 The build stage of the Safer Epsom and Ewell project is aimed at 
providing opportunities to younger people to develop skills aimed at 
an overall positive impact on themselves and their community. This 
is likely to have a positive impact on the protected characteristic of 
age. 

5.2 Crime & Disorder 

5.2.1 Inherently this project is aimed at positively contributing to the 
reduction of crime and disorder in the borough. 

5.3 Safeguarding 

5.3.1 Through targeted youth work and structured supervision, additional 
opportunities are presented for the identification of safeguarding 
concerns and for these to be acted upon. 

5.4 Dependencies 

5.4.1 The Build stage of the programme is dependent on the delivery of 
the Clear and Hold stages including effective partnership with 
members of the Community Safety Partnership and wider. 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



Crime and Disorder Committee  
24 February 2026  

 

6 Financial Implications 

6.1 The Council’s involvement in Safer Epsom and Ewell has been mainly 
through officer time in assisting the police in planning, developing and 
participating in programme activities. The OPCC has made provision to 
fund the Council up to £5,000 as a contribution towards the costs to the 
role the Council has had in this programme.  

6.2 Other officer involvement will be met by existing budget provision for the 
services involved. 

6.3 Section 151 Officer’s comments: Financial implications are included in 
the body of the report. 

7 Legal Implications 

7.1 The Build stage does not require the Council to exercise any of its legal 
powers. 

7.2 Legal Officer’s comments:  None for the purposes of this report 

8 Policies, Plans & Partnerships: 

8.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged: 

  Safe and Well 

8.2 Service Plans: The matter is not included within the current Service 
Delivery Plan. 

8.3 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: None 

8.4 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: Set out in the 
body of this report 

8.5 Partnerships: The existing Community Safety Partnership is key to this 
project augmented by additional organisations as necessary.  

8.6 Local Government Reorganisation Implications: None 

9 Background papers 

9.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows: 

Previous reports: 

 None 

Other papers: 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Crime and Disorder Committee  
24 February 2026  

 

 Home Office (2025), Evaluation of Clear, Hold, Build: A local 
response to serious and organised crime [online] 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/evaluation-of-clear-hold-
build/evaluation-of-clear-hold-build-a-local-response-to-serious-and-
organised-crime  

Page 12

Agenda Item 4

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/evaluation-of-clear-hold-build/evaluation-of-clear-hold-build-a-local-response-to-serious-and-organised-crime
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/evaluation-of-clear-hold-build/evaluation-of-clear-hold-build-a-local-response-to-serious-and-organised-crime
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/evaluation-of-clear-hold-build/evaluation-of-clear-hold-build-a-local-response-to-serious-and-organised-crime


                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 1 of 28 
 

 

Clear, Hold, Build  
Epsom 
Version: 1.0 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 2 of 28 
 

Epsom & Ewell 
The Borough of Epsom and Ewell has a population of 80,000 people and 32,000 homes.  It is the smallest of all Surrey Boroughs both geographically and in 
population however it is the most densely populated. It consists of a busy town centre surrounded by residential housing estates with a mixture of social housing 
and privately owned properties. There is a shopping centre along with shops along the high street.  The shopping centre attracts people who travel into the area from 
neighbouring boroughs for business and leisure.  

The nighttime economy sits in Epsom Town Centre which has several restaurants, pubs and clubs as well as the Epsom Racecourse which holds regular race meets 
and music events during the summer. Epsom is also home to the North East Surrey College of Technology (Nescot) which has a very diverse population with 
students travelling into Epsom from neighbouring areas to access education and training. 

Epsom experiences its own challenges in relation to crime and disorder. The most prominent Serious and Organised Crime threat is that of youth drug dealing, 
motorbike theft and associated violence. Recent community surveys point to high levels of discontent amongst the public in this regard. Epsom experiences high 
levels of shoplifting during the day, and alcohol related violence in the weekend evenings that are symptomatic of a town centre environment.  

Aims 
This document sets out the some of the specific challenges facing Epsom and Ewell that are the focus of the Clear, Hold, Build (CHB) project. It uses police and 
partner data to describe the individual challenges of the four identified hotspots. It provides data to benchmark for future performance and offers some 
understanding of Why, How, Where and When resources may be allocated to meet these challenges.  

The four hotspots are: 

1. Epsom Town Centre 
2. The Longmead estate, a residential area in the west of Epsom 
3. The Watersedge estate, a residential area in the northwest of Epsom. 
4. North East Surrey College of Technology (Nescot) 

The crime types focused on through this report are: 

• Acquisitive crime – burglary business and residential, vehicle crime and theft. 
• Anti-social behaviour – ASB nuisance and personal, and public order1.  
• Drugs – possession and supply.  

 
1 ASB activity is not always recorded as a crime and sometimes is only recorded by Surrey Police on CADs i.e. has been called in by a witness/victim and does not get officially 
crimed.  

Introduction 

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 3 of 28 
 

• Violence Against Women and Girls – non-domestic harassment and sexual offences2. 
• Violence – weapon possession, robbery, and violent crimes. 

 

What is Clear, Hold, Build?3 

Clear Hold and Build (CHB) is a whole system approach delivered in an operational way to improve the local response to tackling Serious and Organised Crime 
(SOC) threats. CHB is a preventative partnership approach, which requires engagement and active participation from Statutory, 3rd Sector, and private sector 
partners. It is designed to deliver impact by reducing SOC-related crime, threats, and harm, creating change from within communities to build sustainable safety 
and increase community resilience.  

Clear  
• Arrest and relentlessly disrupt the Organised Crime Group (OCG) members using all criminal, civil, and regulatory powers, and levers to remove and impede 

their ability to operate.  
• Increase community confidence by removing the threat and creating safer places and spaces.  

Hold  
• Prevent other OCG members from capitalising on the vacuum created as they seek to capture illicit markets or gain influence over the local area.  
• Further improve community confidence by ensuring those areas made safe remain so and perceptions of improved security, reassurance, and confidence 

are not undermined.  
Build  

• Enhance partner agency and stakeholder connectivity to improve local services based on need.  
• Work with and support the community to enable them to become more assertive and confident, reduce permissive behaviours, tolerance to illicit goods and 

services, and criminal/anti-social behaviour.  
• Improve the living, working, and recreational environment for residents by empowering them to work with stakeholders building community resilience and a 

safer, stronger community.  
 
The principle aims of CHB for each site are:  

• Tackle organised crime groups (OCGs) acting in the neighbourhood.  
• Build community resilience by reclaiming and rebuilding communities affected by SOC and the drivers of SOC.  
• Restore the relationship between the community, the police, and statutory agencies. 

  

 
2 VAWG is not a specific criminal offence so must be defined. Clear, Hold, Build aims to reduce public place offending in our named hotspots. For the purposes of this document we 
have defined VAWG as any sexual offence or harassment offence that is classed as non-domestic, where the victim is recorded as female or unknown (65% of sexual offences and 
59% of harassments).  
3 Clear Hold Build – An Operational Guide: Inspector Paul Arnold - SEROCU 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 4 of 28 
 

Epsom population 
Epsom and Ewell has a population size of around 81,000 people and whilst it is the smallest of all Surrey Boroughs, it is the most densely populated4. The largest 
proportion of the population are aged 16-64 (61.76%), followed by children under 16 (20.18%) and adults aged over 65 (18.06%).  

There are 3,825 people in Epsom and Ewell who are disabled under the Equality Act which equates to 4.73% of the working 
population and there are 1,583 people providing over 50 hours of unpaid care a week. Of the 1,583, there are 131 children 
recorded as providing unpaid care, but there may be some discrepancy in this figure due to a potential hidden population of 
unidentified children providing this care. Child poverty and hardship is likely to lead to negative outcomes, including poor 
education attainment and increased involvement in the criminal justice system. 

Deprivation and unemployment 
In terms of employment and deprivation, Epsom and Ewell has lower levels of 
deprivation compared to Surrey with an Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) score of 
8.83 compared to 10.08. It also has a slightly lower than average number of people 
receiving benefits for unemployment (2.24% compared to 2.37%) but has had an 
increase in unemployment from 1.13% (January 2023) to 2.24% (August 2024). For 
those in work, a higher proportion work in the private sector (80.95%) than then 
public sector (19.05%) and are more likely to be part-time than the Surrey average 
(38.71% compared to 31.81%). The jobs density5 percentage in Epsom and Ewell 
was 62.24% in 2022 which is lower than the average across Surrey (78.60%) and the 
South East (76.16%). Less opportunity for paid employment could push some into 
criminality. 

Alcohol and drug misuse 
The use of the Ambulance service for drug related injury is relatively low in Epsom 
and Ewell. Between April 2021 – March 2024, there were 111 drug-related 999 call 
outs for the Ambulance service, 82 drug-related admissions to hospital and 4,160 

alcohol-related admissions. On the more severe end of drug abuse there were 11 drug-related deaths (5 in Epsom North) and 225 non-fatal overdoses. The number 
of non-fatal overdoses has reduced from a high of 115 (April 2021 – March 2022) to 40 the subsequent period6. The reason for this decrease is unknown. Whilst the 
numbers of drug related call outs for ambulance is low, there is still a reasonable demand on emergency services related to alcohol and drugs, and it is likely that 
the true number of individuals abusing substances in Epsom is higher. 

 
4 Local Insight England Summary Report – Epsom and Ewell, Surrey County Council, October 2024. 
5 Calculated as the number of jobs per 100 working-age people. 
6 Hospital Admissions and 999 Call-Outs, Community Safety and Prevention Board. 

Epsom Community Data 

Figure 2 - Percentage per population for 
alcohol related admissions to hospital  

Figure 1 – Map showing the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (IMD) Average LSOA Rank in 
Epsom and Ewell. Higher deprivation in CHB 
hotspots. 

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 5 of 28 
 

Cambridge Crime Harm Index (CCHI) and most ‘harmful’ offences 
In criminal justice, there are offences that are considered more harmful than others and the sentencing associated with such crimes often reflects this harm. The 
Cambridge Crime Harm Index (CCHI) is a system that attempts to measure the harm of crime on victims and uses sentencing start points as the basis for 
calculation. In total across the three areas (Central, North West and West), rape and serious sexual offences have the highest CCHI score followed by violent crime 
and residential burglary. Despite other crimes sometimes having a higher count of offences (i.e. rape/sexual offences has 17 offences compared to harassment 
having 122 but appearing much lower down on the harm index), the cumulative harm of these offences is calculated by the CCHI to be high and it is reasonable to 
focus on reducing these ‘high harm’ offences.  

 

 Row Labels 
Sum of CCHI 

Score Count of type 
RAPE / SERIOUS SEXUAL OFFENCE 29210 17 
VIOLENT CRIME PUBLIC PLACE 23932.5 286 
BURGLARY RESIDENTIAL 17835 61 
VIOLENT CRIME OTHER 10652 176 
SEXUAL OFFENCE 9444 47 
ROBBERY 8406 25 
CRIME OTHER 6070.5 117 
DRUGS 4710 97 
THEFT 2308 337 
HARASSMENT 1283 122 
CRIME VEHICLE 667 151 
BURGLARY BUSINESS AND COMMUNITY 606 26 
OFFENSIVE WEAPON 281 14 
PUBLIC ORDER 276 81 
KNIFE/BLADE POSSESSION - PUBLIC PLACE 196 4 
KEYLESS VEHICLE THEFT 70 7 
ASB NUISANCE 31 78 
ASB PERSONAL 8 6 
KNIFE/BLADE POSSESSION - PRIVATE PLACE  1 
Grand Total 115986 1653 

Table 1 - Cambridge Crime Harm Index (CCHI) score calculated by crime type for the three focus areas: Central, North West and West. 

Epsom Community Data 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 6 of 28 
 

Epsom and the nighttime economy (NTE) 
Epsom town centre is a busy central location with multiple businesses, including retail units and hotels, a train station with 
direct links to London, Surrey and West Sussex and residential housing. Epsom also has an active nighttime economy 
(NTE) with several public houses and nightclubs and there is a large alcohol licensing zone in the area, mainly around the 
High Street and train station (displayed in Figure 6)7. 

The extent of the impact of the NTE on emergency resources and the population in Epsom is difficult to assess fully, 
however, there is some evidence to suggest the effect on resources of the NTE on some areas. For example, alcohol related 
999 call-outs in Epsom and Ewell are moderate and account for 15% of the total in Surrey. However, Epsom North and Town 
have the highest percentage per population for alcohol related hospital admissions and it primarily affects the 51-70 year old age bracket8.  

‘Highest Harm’ Crime  
In terms of high harm crimes, the ‘highest harm’ offences in the area during the reporting period (displayed in Table 2) are rape of female aged over 16 and 
residential burglary, followed by rape of a female child under 13, robbery and GBH. These crimes are assessed to cause high harm and a reduction in the number of 
these offences, could have a significant impact on victims and the population.  

                                                                                                                               

 

 

 

 

 

                                                

 

 
                                Table 2 – The ‘highest harm’ offences by CCHI score for Epsom and Ewell Centra 

 
7 Review of Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions and 999 Call-Outs, SODA, September 2024. 
8 Review of Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions and 999 Call-Outs, SODA, September 2024. 

Epsom & Ewell Central Sum of CCHI Score 

RAPE OF A FEMALE AGED 16 OR OVER 7300 
RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY OF A HOME 
(DWELLING) 7300 
RAPE OF A FEMALE CHILD UNDER 13 BY A 
MALE 5840 

ROBBERY OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 4745 

WOUNDING OR GRIEVOUS BODILY HARM 4380 

Epsom and Ewell Central 

Figure 3 - Source Local Insight Surrey County 
Council 

Figure 4 - Map showing the licensing zones in Epsom & Ewell town centre 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 7 of 28 
 

Acquisitive Crime 
In the reporting period, there were 303 recorded acquisitive crimes in Epsom and Ewell 
Central, the majority of which are theft (197) followed by vehicle crime (66). Most theft 
offences are recorded on Niche simply as ‘theft’ (107) and so the specific type of theft 
cannot be determined easily. In terms of stat classification, the largest number of crimes 
recorded in the area are theft from motor vehicle (43), theft from person (38) and theft of 
motor vehicle (30). Epsom and Ewell Central has the highest number of reported vehicle 
crimes (including theft from, theft of and criminal damage) of the three areas with 92 
recorded crimes compared to 58 (West) and 56 (North West). The elevated number of 
vehicle crime is likely partially due to the considerable number of car parks and general 
higher concentration of people within a large area.  

Most acquisitive crime investigations in Epsom and Ewell Central are completed with no 
suspect identified (230) and only 8 are recorded as having action taken i.e. charged suspect 
or other type of intervention. This means that 76% of acquisitive crime in Central has no 
suspect and only 2.6% have someone charged which is a significantly low detection level.  

 

In general, most acquisitive crime in the area occurs in the spring/early summer period (April – 
July, average of 29) but there is a spike in offences in October (38), as displayed in Figure 6. 28 
of these October offences are recorded just as ‘theft’, and no further detail can be provided at 
this stage.  

There is a slight spike of burglary offences occurring on Saturdays (9), Tuesdays (8) and 
Thursdays (8). For all theft offences, there is a small spike of offending on Wednesdays (37) 
and for vehicle crime, it is Monday and Fridays (14 each) and Thursdays (13). Of note, Epsom 
and Ewell Central has the most burglaries of the three areas with 38 compared to 29 for West 
and 20 for North West. The Central burglaries are assessed as having an equal level of harm to 
rape of female aged 16 or over, and despite possibly not being comparable on the surface, it 
would have a positive outcome on harm reduction, if the number of burglaries were reduced.  

 

 

Figure 5 - Graph showing acquisitive crime types in Epsom and Ewell Central 

Figure 6 - Graph showing acquisitive crime in Epsom and Ewell Central 
by month 

Epsom and Ewell Central 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 8 of 28 
 

For all acquisitive crime in the area that occurs over a period of time, there appears to be a spike in offending on Thursday afternoons 13:00 – 15:00 and another on 
Monday afternoons 13:00 – 14:009.  

 

 

 

 

 

Shoplifting 
In the reporting period, there were 254 recorded shoplifting offences and most of these occurred in February (44), followed by November (32). Generally, Thursday – 
Saturday are the worst hit days for shoplifting and the top offence locations are Co-Op Station Approach (66), B&M (28) and Waitrose (25). Three of the top offence 
locations are in the Ashley Centre: Waitrose, Marks & Spencer, and Boots, meaning the shopping centre would be a good location to proactively target.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                Table 3 - Table showing Epsom and Ewell Central top shoplifting offence locations 
                                                  

                                                

 
9 Figure 7 is created by ‘weighting’ the reported offence day and time. The more offences that occur at a given time the higher the weighting (Red = High / Green = Low). By 
considering all offences together it is possible to identify patterns or trends in offending that may otherwise go unnoticed. 

Top shoplifting offence locations  Count 
Co-Operative Food, Station Approach 66 
B&M Bargains, 78-80, High Street 28 
Waitrose Ltd, The Ashley Centre 25 
Marks & Spencer Plc, The Ashley Centre 16 
Boots The Chemists Ltd, The Ashley Centre 12 
Co-Operative Retail Services Ltd, 9 Upper High Street 12 
Tk Maxx, 106-110, High Street 12 
Sainsburys Supermarkets Ltd, Sainsburys, Kiln Lane 11 

Day of week Count 
Monday 36 
Tuesday 38 
Wednesday 29 
Thursday 43 
Friday 41 
Saturday 41 
Sunday 26 
Grand Total 254 

Table 4 - Table showing shoplifting offences by day of week 

Epsom and Ewell Central 

Figure 7 - Weighted time chart for acquisitive offence windows 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 9 of 28 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour Crime 
The Surrey Police Anti-Social Behaviour survey 2025 reported that 66.4% of respondents in Epsom and Ewell felt that their local area had worsened due to ASB and 
83% has either witnessed or experienced ASB10. This is the worst across all Surrey boroughs and reinforces that ASB is visible to the community and requires a 
visible response. Further, in general, 60% of respondents said they would contact Surrey Police in the first instance for help with ASB and only 20% said they would 
contact their Local District or Borough Council. This indicates that the public rely on the police to deal with ASB but are also not satisfied with the policing response. 
A multi-agency approach is likely to be the most appropriate and effective method to reduce ASB. Whilst this relates to the borough as a whole, the significant 
impact of ASB on the public is clear and figures are likely similar across the three target geographical areas of CHB.  

The below are some examples of public sentiment around ASB in Epsom and Ewell from the 
ASB survey:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
10 ASB Survey Summary Report V1.0, Surrey Police Research & Survey Team, May 2025 

Epsom and Ewell Central 

• “I never used to worry about Epsom but I have witnessed a rapid decline in behaviour 
in the past 5 years.” 
 

• “This makes the area less pleasant for families and a place where I am not 
comfortable having my children out of arms reach. There is no desire from local 
authorities to deal with these issues. Police included.” 
 

• “Only time you ever see police is on a Friday night when the high street becomes a 
complete war zone.” 
 

• “Reported so many times and not felt like these issues are being properly dealt with. 
Those caught are never arrested or if arrested released to do exactly the same thing as 
the week before without consequence for their actions such as paying towards the 
damages!” 
 

• On why they didn’t report: “Didn't think it would do any good, and didn't know who to 
report to.” 

 

Figure 8 - Percentage of respondents who believe their local area has 
better/worsened compared to a year ago. 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 10 of 28 
 

In the reporting period, there were 83 ASB recorded crimes in Epsom and Ewell Central, as displayed 
in Figure 9. The majority of these are intentional harassment offences (32) followed by ASB nuisance 
(28). Epsom and Ewell Central has the highest number of public order harassment offences over the 
three areas: West has 10 and North West has 6. 

Of the 83 recorded ASB and public order offences, 34 have a ‘blank’ status which means that the 
outcome of the investigation is not easily determined. From the remaining offences, 2 have had an 
action taken i.e. charged or community resolution, and 16 are completed with no suspect identified.  

In general, most of the ASB offences in the area occurs in the spring/summer period (March – August) 
and there is a slight spike in offences in March (14) and August (15). Most of the March offences are 
public order (9) and for August, they are ASB nuisance (8). Overall, there is a peak in ASB related 
offending on Fridays (21) and most ASB offending occurs between the hours of 15:00 – 16:00 (10) and 
17:00 – 18:00 (9).  

 

  There are several locations 
that have multiple recorded 
ASB offences, mostly 
commercial businesses: 
McDonalds (5), Court 

Recreation Ground (3) and Marks & Spencer (3). These figures appear low compared to 
previous figures for the period 01/05/2023 – 30/04/2024 which indicate 19 calls made to 
Police about ASB at McDonalds, 24 at Derby Square and 16 on the High Street generally11. 
This decline could be due to several reasons: a reduction in ASB in Epsom Central or the 
number of incidents reported to Police, or that reported ASB is not being crimed correctly. All 
of these locations would be good proactive targets in reducing ASB in Epsom Central. 

  

 
11 Op Chariot Epsom High Street Profile V1, Surrey Police, May 2024  

Epsom and Ewell Central 

Figure 9 - Graph showing ASB crime in Epsom and Ewell Central 

Figure 10 - Graph showing ASB crime in Epsom and Ewell Central by month 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 11 of 28 
 

Drug Crime 
Epsom and Ewell Central has by far the highest number of drug offences of the three areas with 57 
crimes compared to 28 for West and 12 for North West. This is highly likely due to more police 
presence and awareness of drug use/supply in the concentrated areas of the town. Further, drug use, 
especially cannabis, is more visible in public spaces than personal use in private residential property.  

Of the 57 drugs offences, a large majority of 63% are for possession, and of these, 75% are for 
possession of cannabis. In general, cannabis offences comprise 50% of Central drug crime which is 
likely due to it being the most used drug nationally and it is often obvious that it is being used. Of note, 
a large number of drug offences have no obvious linked drug type (28%) which is the same across the 
other areas: 42% in North West and 18% in West. 

Just under 20% of all drug offences are recorded as occurring between 23:00 – 00:00 with the majority 
occurring on Saturday (18), Monday (11) or Friday (10) which indicates high levels of nighttime drug 
offending. There is a peak in recorded offences in March (11) and July (10) and most of the offences 
have had a community resolution outcome (40%) whilst only 5% have a charged outcome. 

 

 

 

 

A considerable proportion of offences are recorded as occurring at or near to 
businesses or as ‘road only’ which likely means the subject was stopped on the road 
by police. As per Table 5, the top location for drug offences is in The Derby Square and 
the businesses within it. There are also 9 offences recorded either at Epsom Town 
Hall or the road the building is on, The Parade. This could be due to police recording 
drug offences and using a police location as the offence location.  

  

Table 3 - Table showing Epsom and Ewell Central top drug locations 

                                                                                                                        

Top drug offence locations  Count 
The Derby Square (businesses on) 9 
Epsom Town Hall 6 
Hudson House (including car park), Station Approach 6 
High Street (businesses on) 6 
Court Recreation Ground 3 
The Parade (road only)  3 
Station Approach (road only) 3 
Woodstock Court, Hook Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT198TT 3 
Ashley Road (road only)   2 
Pound Lane (road only)   2 
Travelodge Hotel, Station Approach 2 
Winter Close 2 
Waterloo Road (including Boogie Lounge nightclub) 2 

Figure 11 - Graph showing linked drug type (where recorded) in drug 
offences in Epsom and Ewell Central 

Epsom and Ewell Central 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 12 of 28 
 

Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) Crime 
In the reporting period there were 56 recorded VAWG crimes, the majority of which are harassment (25) and sexual offences (23). The largest crime types within 
these are: pursued a course of conduct amounting to harassment (20) and sexual assault of a female (13), as displayed in Table 6. Of the 32 recorded rapes and 
sexual offences, 8 are under investigation, 8 have completed investigations with no suspect identified and only 2 have a charged status. Despite there being a low 
number of rape of female aged 16 or over (4), these 4 offences are assessed as causing the highest level of harm for the whole of the area, according to the CCHI.  
 
There is almost certainly no trend in when VAWG occurs, however, there is suggestion that there is a link between VAWG and the nighttime economy. For Epsom and 
Ewell Central, there are a small number of possible NTE related VAWG. Just under 20% of offences have an offence window between Friday – Sunday and 22:00 – 
07:00 (an indication of possible licenced premises opening times). Of these, 4 have a linked pub/club as the offence location and 1 of these relates to drink spiking. 
These locations are Fever Nightclub (2), The Faraday (1) and Epsom River Club (1). There are two additional sexual offences occurring at licensed premises outside 
of this period at The Blenheim Public House and Epsom River Club and 2 further drink spiking reports that were not returned under the original search parameters, 
and these relate to Fever Nightclub and The Ginistry.  

With a focus on sexual offences, around 30% appear to have occurred at residential properties. Of the remaining non-residential locations, the most frequent are 
Travelodge Hotel (5), Epsom River Club (2) and Fever Nightclub (2) which all have links to the NTE. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Epsom and Ewell Central 

Figure 12 - Graph showing VAWG crime types in Epsom and Ewell Central 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 13 of 28 
 

 
HARASSMENT 25 
PURSUED A COURSE OF CONDUCT WHICH AMOUNTED TO HARASSMENT 20 
HARASSMENT INVOLVING FEAR OF VIOLENCE 1 
S.4A PUBLIC ORDER ACT: INTENTIONAL HARASSMENT ALARM OR DISTRESS 1 
S.5 PUBLIC ORDER ACT: HARASSMENT ALARM OR DISTRESS 1 
STALKING INVOLVING FEAR OF VIOLENCE 1 
SXP FIRST TIME HARASSMENT 1 
RAPE / SERIOUS SEXUAL OFFENCE 8 
RAPE OF A FEMALE AGED 16 OR OVER 4 
RAPE OF A FEMALE CHILD UNDER 13 BY A MALE 2 
RAPE OF A FEMALE AGED UNDER 16 YEARS 1 
REPORTED INCIDENT OF RAPE - VICTIM (OR THIRD PARTY ACTING ON THEIR BEHALF) HAS NOT CONFIRMED THE OFFENCE OR CANNOT BE TRACED 1 
SEXUAL OFFENCE 23 
SEXUAL ASSAULT OF A FEMALE 13 
TAKE/MAKE/DISTRIBUTE INDECENT PHOTOGRAPHS OR PSEUDO PHOTOGRAPHS OF CHILDREN 2 
ASSAULT ON A FEMALE BY PENETRATION 1 
ATTEMPTED RAPE OF A FEMALE AGED 16 OR OVER 1 
COMMITTING AN ACT OUTRAGING PUBLIC DECENCY 1 
ENGAGE IN SEXUAL COMMUNICATION WITH A CHILD 1 
ENGAGING IN SEXUAL ACTIVITY IN THE PRESENCE OF A CHILD UNDER 16 - OFFENDER AGED 18 OR OVER 1 
SEXUAL ACTIVITY WITH A FEMALE CHILD UNDER 13 - OFFENDER AGED 18 OR OVER - NO PENETRATION 1 
SEXUAL ASSAULT ON A MALE CHILD UNDER 13 1 
WITHOUT SPECIFIC INTENT - SHARING OF PHOTOGRAPH OR FILM OF PERSON IN INTIMATE STATE WITHOUT CONSENT 1 

Table 4 - Table showing VAWG offences by classification in Epsom and Ewell Central 

 

 

 

 

Epsom and Ewell Central 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 14 of 28 
 

Violent Crime 
Epsom and Ewell Central has the largest number of recorded violent crimes with 311, compared to 107 for West and 88 for North West. This is highly likely due to 
the dense concentration of population and the general crime associated to town centres. Over 60% of violence in Central is recorded as ‘violent crime public place’ 
and 28% as ‘violent crime other’. In total, there were 163 common assaults and 79 assault occasioning actual bodily harm (ABH) offences in Central.  

Of all violent crime in the area (311), 33% have no suspect identified (104), 28% have a victim withdrawing/declining support (87) and 5% have a charged outcome or 
other intervention i.e. caution (15).  

In general, violent crimes occur consistently throughout the year with a slight increase in December (37) and reasonable decreases in September (14) and 
November (16). There are a small number of violent offences between 03:00 – 13:00 and a high period from 13:00 – 01:00 with a peak between 21:00 – 22:00 (30) 
and 19:00 – 20:00 (25). The worst concurrent time period for violence is between 00:00 – 02:00 with a combined total of 47 offences. In general, the worst days for 
violence in Central are Friday – Sunday with an average of 62 offences on each of these days throughout the period. Several locations in Central have repeat issues 
with violence, the top being: McDonalds (22), Fever Nightclub (17) and The Faraday (12). There is some overlap of these locations with sexual and ASB offending and 
these locations would be worthwhile targeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Epsom and Ewell Central 

Figure 14 - Graph showing Violence crime types in Epsom and Ewell Central Figure 13 - Graph showing violent crime in Epsom and Ewell Central by month 

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 15 of 28 
 

Similarly to VAWG, violent offences are anecdotally associated with the NTE and there are a 
proportion of possible NTE related violence. Just under 30% (89) of violence offences have an 
offence window between Friday – Sunday and 22:00 – 07:00 (an indication of possible licenced 
premises opening times). Of these offences, 47 are linked to a pub/club, 8 to food establishments 
open late and 2 to taxi ranks. There are a number of locations that have several violent crimes linked 
to them: Fever Nightclub (18), The Faraday (7), McCafferty’s (6) and McDonald’s (6), as displayed in 
Table 7.  

Intelligence 
In the reporting period there were 172 intelligence reports linked to one or more of the five focus 
crime types. The majority of these were drugs related (91) followed by ASB (49), acquisitive (13), 
VAWG (12)12 and violence (7). Of these 172 reports, there were 31 that were linked to more than one 
of the focus crimes, the majority of which were ASB and drugs (27). The top locations appearing in 
intelligence reports were Derby Square (11), Rosbery House (9) and Hudson House (7).   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Table 5 - Table showing Epsom and Ewell Central top NTE violence locations 

 

                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                     

 

 

 

 

 

 
12 In general, most intelligence that has been marked as ‘sexual’ is regarding sex work and is not necessarily VAWG related and is therefore not a clear representation of VAWG 
intelligence.  

Top violence offence locations – pub/club Count 
Fever Nightclub 18 
The Faraday 7 
McCafferty’s 6 
The Assembly Rooms (Wetherspoons) 5 
Boogie Lounge 4 
The Derby Square 3 
Marquis of Granby 2 
Be At One 1 
Fillies Nights 1 
Top violence offence locations – food  Count 
McDonald’s  6 
Epsom Grill 1 
KFC 1 

Epsom and Ewell Central 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 16 of 28 
 

Epsom and Ewell North West contains the Watersedge Estate and borders the Metropolitan Police boundary. The area covered by 
Surrey Police’s Epsom and Ewell North West is displayed in the map on the right and roughly incorporates 3 areas (as defined by 
Surrey County Council). 

Community Data13 
Surrey County Council data indicates that the North West includes areas with reasonably high levels of deprivation, namely relating 
to Ruxley Lane. This includes higher percentages of the population claiming either Universal Credit (Ruxley Lane - 30.82% compared 
to average of 11.88% in other 2 boundaries within North West), or out of work benefits (Ruxley Lane – 23.95% compared to average of 
12.62% for other 2 boundaries within North West). Similarly, 16-24 year olds claiming DWP in November 2024 was 24.68% in Ruxley 
Lane (compared to an average of 11.88% for the surrounding 2 boundaries in North West) and there are high levels of social rented 
housing at 46.6% (compared to 13.46% and 2.87%). Further, it is also assessed that there are higher levels of children living in 
income deprived families in Ruxley Lane (26.11% compared to average of 8.2% in other 2 areas) and pensioners living in poverty 
(25.56% compared to average of 8.3% in other 2 areas). Higher levels of deprivation and low/no income can correlate to an increased 
demand for local and emergency services in an area, and likelihood of engaging in criminality.   

This deprivation may be linked to the proportion of the population with low levels of qualifications. Whilst in general for Epsom and Ewell, 44.33% of people have a 
degree level qualification and only 12.76% have no qualifications, in Ruxley Lane, 22.29% have no qualifications which is higher than the average for the area. 
Attaining no educational qualifications can negatively impact an individual’s ability to gain employment which increases the likelihood of having to claim benefits 
and can negatively impact mental health.    

Other potential indicators of poor community engagement in the area is the Community Needs Index 2023, which for Ruxley Lane indicates poor community and 
civic infrastructure and low levels of participation in community life. Finally, a more generalised suggestion of poor community engagement is the voter turnout at 
local elections which for the North West area averaged at 36.2% in 2022. Poor community engagement could mean that the population are mistrustful of authorities 
and may be reluctant to engage.  

‘Highest Harm’ Crime  
The ‘highest harm’ offences in the area during the reporting period (displayed in Table 8) are 
residential burglary and GBH, followed by rape of a female aged 16 or over, attempted 
murder and GBH.  

 

 

 
13 Local Insight Surrey County Council data. 

Epsom & Ewell North West 
Sum of CCHI 

Score 
RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY OF A HOME 
(DWELLING) 4380 
WOUNDING OR GRIEVOUS BODILY HARM 4380 
RAPE OF A FEMALE AGED 16 OR OVER 3650 
ATTEMPT TO COMMIT MURDER 3285 
GRIEVOUS BODILY HARM W/I 2920 

Table 6 - The ‘highest harm’ offences by CCHI score for Epsom and Ewell North West 

Epsom and Ewell North West 

Figure 15 - Source Local Insight 
Surrey County Council 

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 17 of 28 
 

Acquisitive Crime 
In the reporting period, there were 133 recorded acquisitive crimes in Epsom and Ewell North West, the 
majority of these were theft (67) followed by vehicle crime (41). There is then a significant drop to 15 
residential burglary offences. The largest offences by stats classification are theft (46), theft of motor 
vehicle (20) and theft from motor vehicle (18). Of these 133 offences, there have been 2 acquisitive crime 
investigations that have resulted in a charge but 107 with no suspected identified.  

There is a peak in acquisitive offending in the area in November with 22 recorded offences compared to 
the next highest of 15 (July and October), as displayed in Figure 17. Of the 22 November offences, 14 are 
‘theft’, 6 are vehicle crime and 2 are residential burglaries.  

In terms of most frequent occurring days for offending: Thursday (7) for burglary offences, Saturday for 
vehicle crime (12) and for general theft offences, a small high on Monday of 12 offences. For all acquisitive 
crime in the area that has a longer potential offence window, there appears to be an increase in offending 
between Saturday 17:00 – Sunday 13:00 and another increase between Thursday 21:00 – Friday 06:0014. 
Targeting these timeframes for proactive patrol may help reduce offending. 

 

 

 

 
14 Figure 18 is created by ‘weighting’ the reported offence day and time. The more offences that occur at a given time the higher the weighting (Red = High / Green = Low). By 
considering all offences together it is possible to identify patterns or trends in offending that may otherwise go unnoticed. 

Figure 16 - Graph showing acquisitive crime types in Epsom and 
Ewell North West 

Figure 17 - Graph showing acquisitive crime in Epsom and Ewell North 
West by month 

Epsom and Ewell North West 

Figure 18 - Weighted time chart for acquisitive offence windows 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 18 of 28 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour Crime  
The Surrey Police Anti-Social Behaviour survey 2025 reported that 85.1% of respondents in Epsom and Ewell believed that youths were partly/fully responsible for 
ASB in their local area15. In Epsom and Ewell North West, the average population under the age of 16 is 21.77% which suggests that ASB is disproportionately 
committed by young people who make up less than a quarter of the population16.  Police have also seen that many suspects named as involved in ASB, namely 
motorcycle theft and criminality, are described as young males which supports public perception of the perpetrators of the activity.  

In the reporting period, there were 28 recorded ASB crimes in Epsom and Ewell North West, the lowest number of the three areas. Most of these offences are ASB 
nuisance (17) followed by intentional harassment (6). Similarly to Epsom Central, 18 ASB offences have a ‘blank’ status and there are no charged outcomes for ASB 
public order.  

In general, numbers are relatively low for ASB recorded crime each month, as displayed in Figure 20, with a high of 5 in October, which are all ASB nuisance 
offences. Most of the offences occur midweek with an average of 5.33 offences per day (Wednesday – Friday) and there are only 5 recorded offences occurring on a 
Saturday or Sunday. Similarly to Central, most ASB offending occurs in the afternoon hours of 13:00 – 16:00 (10) and 19:00 – 22:00 (8).  

The top locations in the area for recorded ASB crimes are Ruxley Lane (5), Kingston Road (3), Gatley Avenue (2), Durbar Way (2), Curtis Road (2) and Jasmin Road (2).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
15 ASB Survey Summary Report V1.0, Surrey Police Research & Survey Team, May 2025 
16 Local Insight Surrey County Council data. 

Epsom and Ewell North West 

Figure 20 - Graph showing ASB crime in Epsom and Ewell 
North West 

Figure 19 - Graph showing ASB crime in Epsom and Ewell North West by 
month 

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 19 of 28 
 

Drug Crime 
There is low reported drug crime in Epsom and Ewell North West with only 12 offences: 6 for possession, 1 for supply and 5 with no specified type of drug activity. 
Similarly to Central, most of the possession offences are for cannabis (4) followed by cocaine (2). In relation to intelligence, there is a hotspot of drug related 
reporting around the Longmead Estate. These figures related to drug crime are unlikely to be a true reflection of drug use and criminality in the area which is likely 
higher.  

One third of offences had a community resolution result and only one has a charged status. All the offences in the area occurred during the week with a slight high 
on Thursday of 5. Two thirds of the offences are recorded at residential properties and the top two roads are Holman Road (2) and Collier Close (2).  

Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) Crime 
In Epsom and Ewell North West, there were 68 recorded VAWG offences, and like 
Central, the majority are harassment offences (52). Of all 68 offences, the largest crime 
types are: pursued a course of conduct amounting to harassment (49) and sexual assault 
of a female (5). Of the 16 recorded sexual offences, 4 have no suspect identified, 3 are 
under investigation and only 1 has a charged status.  

The majority of offences occur at residential properties, however, the streets with the 
most reported crimes are Larkspur Way (4), Ash Court (4), Hogsmill Way (4), Gatley 
Avenue (3), Curtis Road (3), Regalia Way (3) and Watersedge (3).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

                                                     Figure 21 - Table showing VAWG offences by classification in Epsom and Ewell North West 
 

 

HARASSMENT 52 
PURSUED A COURSE OF CONDUCT WHICH AMOUNTED TO 
HARASSMENT 49 
CRIME RELATED INCIDENT 1 
HARASSMENT INVOLVING FEAR OF VIOLENCE 1 
RACIALLY OR RELIGIOUSLY AGGRAVATED HARASSMENT OR 
STALKING WITH FEAR OF VIOLENCE 1 
RAPE / SERIOUS SEXUAL OFFENCE 3 
RAPE OF A FEMALE AGED 16 OR OVER 2 
RAPE OF A FEMALE AGED UNDER 16 YEARS 1 
SEXUAL OFFENCE 13 
SEXUAL ASSAULT OF A FEMALE 5 
TAKE/MAKE/DISTRIBUTE INDECENT PHOTOGRAPHS OR 
PSEUDO PHOTOGRAPHS OF CHILDREN 4 
BLACKMAIL 1 
CAUSING OR INCITING A MALE CHILD UNDER 16 TO ENGAGE 
IN SEXUAL ACTIVITY - OFFENDER AGED UNDER 18 - NO 
PENETRATION 1 
COMMITTING AN ACT OUTRAGING PUBLIC DECENCY 1 
SEXUAL ASSAULT OF A FEMALE CHILD UNDER 13 1 

Epsom and Ewell North West 

Figure 22 - Graph showing VAWG crime types in Epsom and Ewell North West 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 20 of 28 
 

Violent Crime 
Most violent crime in Epsom and Ewell North West is ‘violent crime other or public space’ comprising 79 of the 88 offences, as displayed in Figure 23. There were 
also 5 robberies and 4 offensive weapons recorded. Of the total 88 violent crimes there were 20 ABH and 37 common assaults.  

Of all violent crime in the area: 28% have a suspect identified but a victim has withdrawn support (25), 18% have no suspect identified (16), 17% have evidential 
difficulties (15), 13% are under investigation (12) and 8% a charged outcome or other intervention i.e. caution (7).  

There is a general high of violent offences from November – April and a low period between July – October: high of 13 in November and low of 2 in July. Most violent 
offences recorded occur during the 12 hours between 11:00 – 23:00 with a particularly high period between 11:00 – 17:00. There are fewer occurrences between 
00:00 – 10:00. In general, there is an even distribution of offences by day with a high of 15 on Saturday and a low of 4 on Wednesdays.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Epsom and Ewell North West 

Figure 24 - Graph showing Violence crime types in Epsom and 
Ewell North West 

Figure 23 - Graph showing violent crime in Epsom and Ewell North West 
by month 

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 21 of 28 
 

 
The majority of all offences occur at residential properties, however, the streets with the most reported crimes 
are: Ruxley Lane (19), Hogsmill Way (8), Iris Road (6), Kingston Road (6) an Gatley Avenue (6). These 5 roads 
constitute 51% of all violent offences which is likely to have a significant impact on emergency resources and 
community tension.  
 
Intelligence 
In the reporting period there were 131 intelligence reports linked to one or more of the five focus crime types in 
Epsom and Ewell North West. The majority of these were drugs related (87) followed by ASB (32), acquisitive (8) 
and violence (4). Of these 131 reports, there were 21 that were linked to more than one of the focus crimes, the 
majority of which were ASB and drugs (9). There is a small peak in intelligence reported in the month of May 
which has 30 reports compared to the next highest in July of 16. The top locations (by road) appearing in 
intelligence reports were Gatley Avenue (24), Ash Court (23), Ruxley Lane (18) and Collier Close (14). These 
locations also frequently appear in crime statistics and the intelligence supports that these areas are where the 
public and partners are seeing issues and areas of concern. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Top violence offence locations  Count 
Ruxley Lane 19 
Hogsmill Way 8 
Iris Road 6 
Kingston Road (includes businesses 
on) 6 
Gatley Avenue 6 
Epsom and Ewell High School 5 
Chessington Road 5 
Cox Lane 3 
Holman Road 3 
Longford Court 3 
Colne Court 2 

Table 7 - Table showing Epsom and Ewell North West top 
violence locations 

Epsom and Ewell North West 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 22 of 28 
 

Epsom and Ewell West contains the Longmead Estate and is close to the centre of town. The area covered by Surrey Police’s 
Epsom and Ewell West is displayed in the map on the right and roughly incorporates 4 areas (as defined by Surrey County 
Council). 

Community Data17 
Surrey County Council data indicates that Epsom and Ewell West includes areas with reasonably high levels of deprivation. 
This includes higher percentages of the population claiming either Universal Credit (2 of the 4 areas average of 22.79% 
compared to average of 12.21% for other 2 in West), or out of work benefits (1 of the 4 areas high at 21.18% compared to 
average of 11.18% for other 3). Similarly, 16-24 year olds claiming DWP in November 2024 was 24.67% in 1 of the areas 
(compared to an average of 13.79% for the other 3) and there are high levels of social rented housing at 43.56% (average of 2 
areas compared to average of 17.76% for other 2). Further, it is also assessed that there are higher levels of children living in 
income deprived families (23.5% compared to average of 15.15% for other 3 areas) and pensioners living in poverty (19.84% 
average for 2 areas compared to average of 7.08% for other 2).  

Low levels of educational qualifications in the population may influence these higher levels of deprivation. The percentage of the population with no qualifications 
is 21.27% (in 2 of the 4 areas) which is comparable to the level in Ruxley Lane at 22.29%, which are both higher than the average for Epsom and Ewell (12.76%).  

Compared to Epsom and Ewell North West, the West has a better score on the Community Needs Index 2023 but does still have poor voter turnout at local 
elections which was an average of 38.95% in 2022.  

‘Highest Harm’ Crime  
The ‘highest harm’ offences in the area during the reporting period (displayed in Table 10) are rape of female aged over 16 followed by residential burglary, attempt 
murder, GBH and robbery. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                              Table 8 - The ‘highest harm’ offences by CCHI score for Epsom and Ewell West                                                                                                    

 
17 Local Insight Surrey County Council data. 

Epsom & Ewell West Sum of CCHI Score 
RAPE OF A FEMALE AGED 16 OR OVER 7300 
RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY OF A HOME (DWELLING) 4745 
ATTEMPT TO COMMIT MURDER 3285 
WOUNDING OR GRIEVOUS BODILY HARM 2920 
ROBBERY OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 1825 

Figure 25 - Source Local Insight Surrey 
County Council 

Epsom and Ewell West 

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 23 of 28 
 

Acquisitive Crime 
In the reporting period, there were 146 recorded acquisitive crimes in Epsom and Ewell West, and 
similarly to both Central and North West, the majority of these were theft (73) and vehicle crime (44). 
There were 29 recorded burglaries (business and residential) and no recorded keyless vehicle thefts. 
However, these may have been recorded as ‘theft of motor vehicle’ in the vehicle crime and theft 
categories of which there are 22. Similarly to North West, the largest offence by stats classification is 
theft (41) followed by theft of motor vehicle (22) and theft from motor vehicle (20).  

Most acquisitive crime investigations in Epsom and Ewell West result in no suspect being identified 
(107) and only 3 have resulted in a charge.  

There is a slight peak of acquisitive crime (namely vehicle crime and theft) offending in November 
with 18 offences compared to the next highest of 15 for June. However, most months have similar 
numbers, other than February, July, August, and December which have low recorded crimes in 
comparison.  

For burglary offences, the majority 
occurred on Fridays (9) and for vehicle crime and theft, most offending takes place on Mondays (24), 
Saturdays (20) and Thursdays (19). For all acquisitive crime in the area that has a longer potential 
offence window, there are a few peak times of offending: Monday 00:00 – 05:00, Wednesday 17:00 – 
Thursday 05:00, Friday 11:00 – 15:00 and Sunday 00:00 – 03:0018.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
18 Figure 28 is created by ‘weighting’ the reported offence day and time. The more offences that occur at a given time the higher the weighting (Red = High / Green = Low). By 
considering all offences together it is possible to identify patterns or trends in offending that may otherwise go unnoticed. 

Figure 26 - Graph showing acquisitive crime types in Epsom and Ewell West 

Figure 27 - Graph showing acquisitive crime in Epsom and Ewell West by 
month 

Epsom and Ewell West 

Figure 28 - Weighted time chart for acquisitive offence windows 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 24 of 28 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour Crime  
As previously mentioned, 85.1% of respondents to an ASB survey in Epsom and Ewell believed that youths were partly/fully responsible for ASB in their local area19. 
In Epsom and Ewell West, the average population under the age of 16 is 23.75% which suggests that ASB is disproportionately committed by young people who 
make up less than a quarter of the population20.  

There have been 54 ASB crimes in Epsom and Ewell West during the reporting period, the majority of which are ‘ASB Nuisance’ (33) followed by intentional 
harassment (10). This is the highest number of ‘nuisance’ offences across the three areas: 28 for Central and 17 for North West. All of the ‘ASB nuisance’ and ‘ASB 
Personal’ offences have a ‘blank’ status and 37% (7) of public order ASB has no suspect identified. In relation to intelligence, there is a hotspot of ASB related 
reporting around the Longmead Estate.  

There is a significant spike of ASB crimes in October with 14 crimes compared to the next highest of 6. A number of these October offences relate to children/young 
people knocking on residential doors and running off or riding motorbikes. 11 of the 14 crimes are ‘nuisance’ offences. In general, Mondays (17) and Saturdays (10) 
are the worst days and the vast majority of ASB occurs between 16:00 – 21:00 (31) which is typically when children are out of school.  

There are a number of locations that have more than one ASB crime linked to it but the top three 
locations by road are Melton Place/Melton Fields (6), Hollymoor lane (4) and Chessington Road (4).  

 

 

 

 

 

 
19 ASB Survey Summary Report V1.0, Surrey Police Research & Survey Team, May 2025 
20 Local Insight Surrey County Council data. 

Figure 30 - Graph showing ASB crime in Epsom and Ewell West by month 

Epsom and Ewell West 

Figure 29 - Graph showing ASB crime in Epsom and Ewell West 

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 25 of 28 
 

Drug Crime 
There are 28 reported drug offences in Epsom and Ewell West in the reporting period: 60% of these are for 
possession and 88% of these possession offences relate to cannabis. In relation to intelligence, there is a hotspot 
of drug related reporting around the Longmead Estate. 

As with the other geographical areas, the majority of drug investigation outcomes are community resolutions (11) 
but there are more charged offences in the area than the others (5). There appears to be a small peak of offences 
between 13:00 – 17:00 and on Tuesday (8), Monday (6) and Thursday (6).  

Similarly to North West, a large number of the offences (around 50%) are recorded at residential properties and 
the top offence locations by road are Melton Place (3) and Hollymoor Lane (3).  

 

Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) Crime 
Of the 62 recorded VAWG crimes in Epsom and Ewell West, 45 are harassment offences and 17 are sexual 
offences. Focusing on the 17 sexual offences, the largest crime types are rape of a female aged 16 or over (4), 
sexual assault of a female (3) and offences relating to indecent photographs of children (3). Further, 6 offences 
have had victims withdraw support, 3 investigations have not identified a suspect and 2 are still under investigation. There are no offences with a charge status.  

 
Whilst it is still the case that VAWG offences can occur at any time, there is a small cluster of sexual 
offences in June (6) and September (3) which make up just over half of the sexual offences.  

The majority of all offences occur at residential properties, however, the streets with the most 
recorded crimes are Sefton Road (5), Longmead Road (5) and Somerset Close (4).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Location Count 
Sefton Road 5 
Longmead Road (including Blenheim High School) 5 
Somerset Close 4 
Melton Fields/Melton Place 3 
Almond Road 3 
Redwood Drive 3 
Ormonde Avenue 3 

Table 9 - Table showing top VAWG locations in Epsom and Ewell West 

Figure 31 - Graph showing linked drug type (where 
recorded) in drug offences in Epsom and Ewell West 

Figure 32 - Graph showing VAWG crime types in Epsom and Ewell West 

Epsom and Ewell West 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 26 of 28 
 

 
HARASSMENT 45 
HARASSMENT INVOLVING FEAR OF VIOLENCE 6 
PURSUED A COURSE OF CONDUCT WHICH AMOUNTED TO HARASSMENT 35 
PURSUED A COURSE OF CONDUCT WHICH AMOUNTS TO STALKING 1 
S.4A PUBLIC ORDER ACT: INTENTIONAL HARASSMENT ALARM OR DISTRESS 1 
STALKING INVOLVING SERIOUS ALARM/DISTRESS 1 
THREATS TO KILL 1 
RAPE / SERIOUS SEXUAL OFFENCE 6 
PURSUED A COURSE OF CONDUCT WHICH AMOUNTS TO STALKING 1 
RAPE OF A FEMALE AGED 16 OR OVER 4 
REPORTED INCIDENT OF RAPE - VICTIM (OR THIRD PARTY ACTING ON THEIR BEHALF) HAS NOT CONFIRMED THE OFFENCE OR CANNOT BE TRACED 1 
SEXUAL OFFENCE 11 
BREACH SHPO / INTERIM SHPO /SOPO / INTERIM SOPO/ FOREIGN TRAVEL ORDER OR FAIL TO COMPLY WITH A REQUIREMENT UNDER SEC 103D 1 
CAUSING A CHILD UNDER 13 TO WATCH A SEXUAL ACT - OFFENDER AGED UNDER 18 1 
EXPOSURE 1 
POSSESSION OF AN INDECENT OR PSEUDO INDECENT PHOTO OF A CHILD 1 
SEXUAL ASSAULT OF A FEMALE 3 
TAKE/MAKE/DISTRIBUTE INDECENT PHOTOGRAPHS OR PSEUDO PHOTOGRAPHS OF CHILDREN 3 
WITHOUT SPECIFIC INTENT - SHARING OF PHOTOGRAPH OR FILM OF PERSON IN INTIMATE STATE WITHOUT CONSENT 1 

 Table 10 - Table showing VAWG offences by classification in Epsom and Ewell West 

 

 

 

 

 

Epsom and Ewell West 

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 27 of 28 
 

Violent Crime 
There was a total of 107 violent crimes recorded in Epsom and Ewell West and similarly to the other 2 areas, 
ABH and common assault are the largest crime type with 25 and 54 crimes respectively. There were also 6 
offensive weapon/knife crimes and 4 robberies recorded, as displayed in Figure 33.  

Of all violent crime in the area: 26% have no suspect identified (28), 22% have a suspect identified but a victim 
has withdrawn support (24), 22% have evidential difficulties (24), 12% are under investigation (13) and 2% have 
had some kind of intervention i.e. caution (2). There are no crimes with a status of charged.  

There is a significant high of violent offences in October (21) but only 4 of these occurred on Halloween (which 
can often see an increase in certain types of criminality). The reason for this spike is unknown. Most recorded 
violent offences occur between mid-afternoon – early evening (15:00 – 21:00) and figures are generally low 
outside of these times other than a slight increase between 11:00 – 12:00. In general, there is an even 
distribution of offences by day with highs on Wednesday (23), Sunday (19) and Monday (19) and a low of 9 on 
Fridays. 

The most violent crimes reported by street are: 
Longmead Road (14), Hook Road (12) and Chessington Road (9). 

 

Intelligence 
In the reporting period there were 131 intelligence reports linked to one or more of the five focus 
crime types. The majority of these were drugs related (69) followed by ASB (34), violence (14), acquisitive (13) and violence (1). Of these 131 reports, there were 18 
that were linked to more than one of the focus crimes, the majority of which were ASB and drugs (13). The top locations (by road) appearing in intelligence reports 
were Melton Place/Melton Fields (20), Lincoln Walk (13), Hollymoor Lane (13), Hook Road (10) and Chessington Road (10). These locations are mirrored in crime 
reports and support that these are areas of concern as reported by the public and other agencies. 
 

Top violence offence locations  Count 
Longmead Road (including Appleby Care Home (4) and Blenheim school (5)) 14 
Hook Road (including Horton Park Golf Club [5] and St Ebbas Hospital [4]) 12 
Chessington Road 9 
Hollymoor Lane 8 
Danetree Road (including Danetree School [4]) 7 

Table 11 - Table showing Epsom and Ewell West top violence locations 

Epsom and Ewell West 

Figure 33 - Graph showing Violence crime types in Epsom and 
Ewell West 

Figure 34 - Graph showing violent crime in Epsom and Ewell West by month 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



                                                                                                                                                         OFFICIAL                                                                                                                                                              Page 28 of 28 
 

Whilst there are over 28,000 people with degree level qualifications in Epsom and Ewell (44.33% of all people aged 16 or over), which is higher than the average for 
Surrey (42.36%), there are also over 8,000 people (12.76% of all people aged 16 or over) with no qualifications. This figure may be skewed and not incorporate 
individuals that have perhaps fallen through the education system or local council system in general. Further, the rate of youth unemployment benefit claimants 
(aged 18-24) is slightly less than for Surrey with 2.71% compared to 2.75%21.  

There are a number of schools and further education establishments in Epsom. One of these is NESCOT which is a further and higher education college in East 
Epsom & Ewell, which also offers courses for adult learners. NESCOT has around 8,000 students who are from a wide geographical area and incudes students who 
travel into Epsom from neighbouring areas. There have previously been days of action conducted by Police focusing on knife crime at the college. 

Crime22 
Police crime figures are low for the college in the reporting period with the majority falling into the acquisitive (7) and violence (8) types, as displayed in Table 15. The 
most reported crimes are vehicle crime (theft from/of motor vehicle) and robberies of personal property. In general, most of the offences recorded at the college 
occur in February (4) and November (3).  

Location Count 
Nescot College, Reigate Road, Ewell, Surrey, KT173DS 17 

CRIME VEHICLE 4 
DRUGS 3 
KNIFE/BLADE POSSESSION - PUBLIC PLACE 1 
ROBBERY 4 
SEXUAL OFFENCE 2 
THEFT 2 
VIOLENT CRIME OTHER 1 
VIOLENT CRIME PUBLIC PLACE 2 

Nescot Sports Ground, Nescot Football Academy, Banstead Road, Ewell, Surrey, KT173HG 1 
CRIME VEHICLE 1 

Grand Total 20 
                                                                            Table 12 - Count of NESCOT crimes 

Intelligence 
There are three intelligence reports linked to NESCOT: one is marked as ASB and violence, one is marked with drugs, and one is not marked up with any of the focus 
crime types. 

 
21 Local Insight England Summary Report – Epsom and Ewell, Surrey County Council, October 2024 
22 On Niche, NESCOT data is included where it is linked to Nescot College, Nescot Sports Ground or Nescot. 

North East Surrey College of Technology (NESCOT) and Education 

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



Page 1 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

Business Intelligence 

Epsom & Ewell Clear Hold Build 

Survey Summary Report  
 

From: Izzi Hawkins 17641 

Version 1.0 : 11/06/2025 

 

Headline Results 

 

Statement Result

Epsom & Ewell is a safe place for everyone 26.4%

Epsom & Ewell is a safe place for women and girls 18.3%

Feel safe walking around Epsom & Ewell at night 23.0%

Drug use and dealing is a big issue in Epsom & 
Ewell 75.9%

ASB occurs daily in Epsom & Ewell 63.0%

Have experienced verbal abuse in Epsom & Ewell 49.0%

Very likely to report verbal abuse 21.0%

This report presents the results to the Epsom & Ewell Clear Hold Build survey which asked residents 

and people who visit the area about ASB and crime concerns and their feelings of safety in the 

borough.  

The survey ran from 7th May to 4th June 2025 with 411 responses. 

For any further results or breakdowns, please contact Izzi Hawkins 17641 or email 

Research@surrey.police.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2

mailto:Research@surrey.police.uk


Page 2 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

Feelings of Safety & ASB Issues  

Epsom & Ewell 

Chart 1. Agreement with “Epsom & Ewell is nice place to live, work or visit with a good sense of community” 

 
Almost half of the respondents agreed that Epsom & Ewell is a nice place to live, work or visit with a 
good sense of community, whilst around a quarter neither agreed nor disagreed and around a quarter 
disagreed. 

Please explain why you feel this way: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agree: 49.3%

Neither agree nor 
disagree: 23.7%

Disagree: 27.1%

“Compared to many areas of the UK, Epsom 

is a very good place to live. It has good 

connections to London and the rest of Surrey, 

good schools and lots of green space.” 

 

“I’m fortunate with wonderful neighbours. I also believe the 

Epsom Council & associated partners such as Age Concern are 

wonderful with the elderly and always so helpful.” 

 

 “As a mum who has a 13-year-old son, I feel the schools are good and there 

are great parks around and a nice town centre with nice restaurants. 

Epsom and Ewell is generally mainly clean and tidy and well looked after.” 

“Me and my family no longer feel safe visiting the parks and shops due 

to the robberies and thefts carried out by balaclava wearing youths on 

dirt bikes, stolen mopeds or illegal electric bikes.” 

” 
“Crime has become worse, young children smoking drugs in 

local parks and I don’t feel safe on my own walking nor 

with my baby. Feeling intimidated by youths.” 

” 
“Epsom has changed the last few years, lack of 

police presence, drugs openly being sold on 

corners, youths running havoc in town & openly 

stealing from shops.” 

” 

Page 42

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Page 3 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

Chart 2. Agreement that Epsom & Ewell is a safe place for Everyone and Specifically women and girls 

 
Around half of the respondents disagreed that Epsom & Ewell is a safe place for everyone and 
specifically for women and girls. Around a quarter or respondents agreed that Epsom and Ewell is a 
safe place for everyone, whilst a smaller proportion agreed that it is a safe place for women and girls 
(18.3%). 

Chart 3. Feeling safe walking around Epsom & Ewell during the day and during the night (% Safe/ Fairly safe) 

 
Over 65% of respondents feel safe walking around Epsom & Ewell during the day, compared to only 
23% during the night. 

26.4%
18.3%

26.2%

25.8%

47.4%
55.9%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Everyone Specifically women and girls

Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree

65.2%

23.0%

34.8%

77.0%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

During the day During the night

Safe Unsafe

Page 43

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Page 4 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

Chart 4. ASB issues in Epsom & Ewell (% Very big/ big issue) 

 
Over 70% of respondents thought people using or dealing drugs and groups of people hanging 
around were an issue and over half of the respondents’ thought shoplifting was an issue. 

 

Are there any other issues which you think are a problem in Epsom & Ewell? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

14.6%

18.3%

29.9%

38.2%

41.0%

44.2%

53.5%

70.6%

75.9%

0.0% 20.0% 40.0% 60.0% 80.0% 100.0%

Neighbour disputes or nuisance

Graffiti

Alcohol related nuisance

Litter

Vandalism or damage

Public place violent crime

Shoplifting

Groups of people hanging around

People using or dealing drugs

“County lines, massive drug 

problems.” 

“Theft from vans.” 

 

“Car/bike thefts and robberies, especially at night; 

youngsters with face coverings on electric bikes with 

threatening behaviour causing havoc; pick pockets and 

delivery drivers running rampage on the high street.” 

“Balaclava wearing youths terrorising Epsom and 

surrounds.” 

“Ticketless traveling on trains 

and buses, and intimidating 

transport staff when 

confronted.” 

“Pavement parking and inconsiderate 

driving by delivery drivers.” 

“Thefts, moped riders going 

through the Hogsmill, drug 

dealing rife in Ewell and 

surrounding areas, people 

waiting to rob children as they 

get off the train.” 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Page 5 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

Specific ASB/ Crime Hotspots 

Numbers of respondents who live in or frequently visit these areas: 

 

Table 1. Specific crime, antisocial behaviour issues or safety concerns in hotspot areas:  

 Epsom Town Centre Longmead Estate Nescot College Watersedge Estate 

ASB Drug use Drug use Drug use Drug use 

Youth related 
nuisance - balaclavas 

Youth related 
nuisance - balaclavas 

Youth related 
nuisance 

Youth related 
nuisance - balaclavas 

Mopeds/ E-bikes Mopeds/ E-bikes Mopeds/ E-bikes Mopeds/ E-bikes 

Litter Litter/ Fly-tipping Litter Fly-tipping 

Anti-social driving Anti-social driving Anti-social driving Anti-social driving 

Verbal abuse/ 
Threatening 
behaviour 

Verbal abuse/ 
Threatening 
behaviour 

Verbal abuse/ 
Threatening 
behaviour 

Verbal abuse/ 
Threatening 
behaviour 

Alcohol related 
nuisance 

Alcohol related 
nuisance 

 Alcohol related 
nuisance 

 Vandalism or damage Vandalism or damage  

Graffiti   Graffiti 

Groups of people 
hanging around 

   

Anti-social parking    

Crime Drug dealing Drug dealing Drug dealing Drug dealing 

Knife crime Knife crime  Knife crime 

 Vehicle theft Theft/ Vehicle theft/ 
Bike theft 

Vehicle theft 

Mugging   Mugging 

Shoplifting    

 Violent crime   

Locations Outside McDonald's 
Station approach 
Pubs/ nightclubs 
Opposite Nando’s 
Ebbisham Square 
Ashleigh Centre 
Epsom Square 
Car Parks 

Chessington and 
Hook Road alleyway 
 

Alleyway by Nescot 
Alleyway between 
college and railway 
line 

Hogsmill open space 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Epsom Town 
Centre

377 respondents

Longmead Estate

104 respondents

Nescot College

39 respondents

Watersedge 
Estate

35 respondents

Page 45

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Page 6 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

Epsom & Ewell 

Table 2. Days of the week/times when crime and antisocial behaviour is most prevalent 

  
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 

00:00 - 06:59 20.4% 20.1% 20.8% 21.2% 25.5% 34.3% 31.0% 

07:00 - 11:59 15.7% 16.8% 16.8% 15.7% 17.2% 20.8% 19.3% 

12:00 - 16:59 31.4% 32.1% 32.1% 32.8% 36.1% 43.8% 43.1% 

17:00 - 19:59 56.2% 56.6% 56.6% 58.8% 67.5% 67.5% 59.9% 

20:00 - 23:59 58.8% 59.9% 59.9% 64.2% 82.5% 84.7% 66.4% 

Respondents suggested that each day, crime and ASB is least prevalent from 07:00 to 11:59 and then 

increases throughout the day. Respondents suggested that crime and ASB is most  prevalent at each 

time frame on Friday and Saturday. 

Table 3. Days of the week/times when feel particularly unsafe when walking around Epsom & Ewell 

  Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 

00:00 - 06:59 30.0% 29.6% 29.6% 30.3% 34.1% 41.1% 39.4% 

07:00 - 11:59 5.9% 5.9% 5.9% 5.9% 6.3% 8.0% 8.4% 

12:00 - 16:59 10.5% 10.5% 10.8% 11.5% 12.5% 17.1% 15.0% 

17:00 - 19:59 33.8% 33.8% 33.4% 34.8% 41.5% 44.3% 38.0% 

20:00 - 23:59 70.0% 69.7% 69.7% 72.5% 93.0% 95.5% 78.4% 

Respondents’ feelings of safety mirrored when they felt crime and ASB was more or less prevalent 

with very few respondents feeling unsafe between 07:00 and 11:59 each day, with the proportions 

feeling unsafe increasing throughout the day and peeking between 20:00 – 23:59. The greatest 

proportions of respondents feel unsafe on Fridays and Saturdays between 20:00 and 23:59. 

 

Chart 5. Thinking about the last 6 months, how often antisocial behaviour occurs in Epsom & Ewell

 
63% of respondents indicated that ASB occurs daily in Epsom and Ewell and 29.5% said it occurs 
weekly. Only 4.3% said that ASB occurs monthly and 3.3% said it occurs less than once a month. 

Daily: 63.0%

Weekly: 29.5%

Monthly: 4.3%

Less than once a 
month: 3.3%

Page 46

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Page 7 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

Are there any addresses/ locations within Epsom & Ewell where antisocial behaviour is 
most prevalent? 

 

 
 

Are there any places in particular within Epsom & Ewell where you feel unsafe? 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Page 8 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

Chart 6. % Experienced any of the following when walking around Epsom & Ewell

 
Almost half of the respondents said they have experienced verbal abuse when walking around Epsom 
& Ewell. Smaller proportions said they have experienced cat calling/ wolf whistling (17.2%) and 
physical abuse (9.1%). Only 4.5% said they have experienced up skirting/ other inappropriate 
behaviour when walking around Epsom & Ewell. 
 

Reporting 

 
Chart 7. How likely to report the below to the police if they occurred when walking around Epsom & Ewell

 

High proportions of respondents indicated that they would be very likely to report physical abuse 

(68.5%) and upskirting/ other inappropriate sexual behaviour (58.6%) to the police if they occurred 

when walking around Epsom & Ewell. Whereas only small proportions said they would be very likely 

to report verbal abuse (21.0%) and cat calling/ wolf whistling (9.8%), with over three quarters 

indicating that they would be unlikely to report cat calling/ wolf whistling. 

49.0%

17.2%

9.1%
4.5%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

Verbal abuse Cat calling/ wolf whistling Physical abuse Up skirting/ other
inappropriate sexual

behaviour

11.7%
20.9%

56.4%

76.3%

19.8%

20.6%

22.6%

13.9%

68.5%
58.6%

21.0%
9.8%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Physical abuse Up skirting/ other
inappropriate sexual

behaviour

Verbal abuse Cat calling/ wolf whistling

Not likely Somewhat likely Very likely

Page 48

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Page 9 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

If you selected not likely to report any of the above, please explain why: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Solutions 

Please list any organisations or charities you are aware of, who currently do community 
work in Epsom & Ewell 

 

“Not sure what you could do 

about verbal  abuse as it’s 

difficult to prove?” 

“Not likely to report 

verbal abuse as I 

don’t think anything 

would be done 

about it. […] I have 

been reporting anti-

social behaviours for 

several years and 

not much has been 

done about it.” 

 
“Because the police won't do anything so why bother. And even if they do catch the criminal, 

they just get released straight away to do what they want again. There is no justice.” 

“Cat calling/ wolf whistling 

- Most likely impossible to 

find out who the coward 

is” 

“I feel that reporting them 

would be wasting police time.” 

“I feel it wouldn't 

be dealt with.” 

Page 49

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Page 10 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

What clubs or community initiatives would you like to see run in the area? 

 

Are there any measures we could take to make you feel safer when walking around 
Epsom & Ewell? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

“Much more police 

presence and zero 

tolerance to anti-

social behaviour” 

“Seeing Police presence like there used 

to be - walking around, car patrols 

especially in the troubling areas.” 

“Ask people wearing 

balaclavas to remove them 

when it’s clearly only being 

worn to hide their identity & 

intimidate others.” 

“More police on beat, action 

taken against delivery drivers 

who flout parking rules and 

drive dangerously.” 

“Follow up on 

complaints, more 

police presence.” 

“Better lighting, police 

presence, more CCTV, 

respond to people who are 

raising issues re ASB.” 

“Get rid of the illegal motorbikes 

and their drivers gathering in 

groups.” 

 

Page 50

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Page 11 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

Chart 8. Would you be interested in supporting police and community partnerships going forward? 

 
126 respondents said they would be interested in supporting police and community partnerships 
going forward and 167 were not sure. 

Is there anything else you would like to highlight? 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes: 126

Not sure: 167

No: 81

“Road racing in early 

hours of morning at 

weekends.” 

 

“Epsom was lovely when we 

moved in 16 years ago. Now, 

I worry about kids going into 

town to meet their friends as 

there are county line issues, 

gangs and seriously screwed 

up people knocking about” 

“[My daughter] is really scared by the people on motorbikes in Long Grove Park, she is scared 

she or her brother might be injured. This is our local park, and we do our best to continue to go 

and enjoy it, but the children are always looking out for the motorbikes. In the past we’ve told 

the kids we would report to the police and that the police will help. But nothing has changed 

and my little girl who likes to follow the rules and trust adults is telling me “Why is the police 

not doing anything? They are supposed to keep us safe!” She has lost trust in the police at a 

very young age, and it is really hard to explain to her otherwise. So, I really hope this survey 

will contribute to helping the police to improve things in Epsom.” 

“Motorbikes on pavements” 

 

“All the cars being stolen, burglaries 

occurring, and police just give a crime 

reference over the phone. No longer 

attending the crime scene.[…]” 

“More face-to-face contact and a 

visible presence from enforcement 

officers.  Those committing the crimes 

know that no one is around to stop 

them.” 

“Drink spiking in clubs & 

pubs” 

Page 51

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



Page 12 of 12 
Reviewed By: Morwenna Masters 18255 
Reviewed Date: 13/06/2025 

Demographics 

 

Chart 11. Ethnic Group

 
Most respondents identified as White (334), whilst 15 respondents identified as Asian, 10 identified 
as mixed, 1 identified as Black and 6 identified as another ethnic group. 22 respondents preferred not 
to say their ethnic group. 

White: 334

Asian: 15

Mixed: 10

Black: 1

Other: 6
Prefer not to say: 22

Chart 9. Gender Chart 10. Age 

238 respondents identified as female, 150 as 
male, and 1 as non-binary. 21 respondents 
did not provide their gender. 

 

The greatest proportion of respondents were 
aged 45 to 54, and 55 or older. Smaller 
proportions were aged 35 to 44 and 25 to 34. 
Much fewer respondents where in the younger 
age groups, whilst 24 respondents did not 
provide their age. 

 

Male: 150

Female: 
238

Non-binary: 1 Prefer not to say: 21
Under 18: 

1
18 - 24 

years: 10

25 to 34 
years: 45

35 to 44 
years: 73

45 to 54 
years: 129

55 +: 127

Prefer not 
to say: 24

Page 52

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 2



 

 

Safer Epsom & Ewell 

Clear, Hold, Build – Hold & Build Phase Plan 

 

Strategic Objectives 

 
• To robustly pursue those engaged in serious and organised crime, to stop or 

seriously curtail activity in Epsom Town Centre, The Longmead Estate, The 
Watersedge estate and Nescot. 

• To prepare and protect the community of the above areas, from Organised 
Criminal Gang (OCG) activity filling the space created as a result of robust action 
against them and allowing time to consolidate positive gains made. 

• To prevent the social and economic environments associated with OCGs being 
able to thrive by identifying and implementing longer term whole system 
measures to create more resilient communities resistant to the re-emergence of 
OCGs activity. 

 
 

 

Theme Strategic Aim  
Hold HOLD interventions are designed to be counter measures 

and stabilising interventions which aim 
to maintain the areas of safety achieved and inhibit any 
further OCG presence or activity in the area 
after the initial Clear phase from re-emerging. 

Build To create a whole-systems approach to delivering multi-
agency and community empowered interventions, 
creating sustainable resilience and safety within 
communities to mitigate SOC related harm. 
 

 

HOLD 

The Hold phase should aim to showcase success from Clear and let the community know 

what is being done and why. It should also endeavour to sequence activity against what was 

done in the Clear phase, to ensure cadence and sequencing to avoid random interventions 

being delivered by “just being thrown into the pot.” Plan short, easily deliverable 

interventions which are regular and publicly visible to maintain re-assurance and public 

confidence to abate criminality. Ensure mechanisms are in place to act on any new 

community intelligence that’s forthcoming to maintain trust and confidence gains achieved 

from Clear phase and to show the community intent. Community Launch of CHB and seek 

early engagement with community groups to understand what a BUILD may look like so 

community start to be engaged. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 3



 

 

Examples of the HOLD phase may include –  

•Targeted advertising using technology to broadcast messages online encouraging 

individuals 

within a specific radius to submit intelligence. 

• ASB patrols and regular days of action to reestablish high-visibility and a strong 

enforcement 

presence in the area. 

• Civil Orders, such as Criminal Behaviour Orders (CBOs), Community Protection Notices 

(CPNs) 

and/or Premises closure orders to prohibit Serious Organised Crime (SOC) individuals 

returning to an area or premises remaining open that facilitate criminality. 

• Situational crime prevention interventions, such as CCTV cameras being installed. 

• Environmental impact days, involving environmental health officers conducting house 

visits, fly tipping 

checks, and clean-up days (including litter-picking). 

• Enforcement work by housing officers, including issuing tenancy warning letters for 

breaches of tenancy or terminating tenancy agreements. This may be due to, for example, 

drugs being found in the property. 

Hold interventions can also focus on building public confidence and trust ahead of the Build 

phase. 

Example community engagement activities are: 

• Creating a community hub or pop-up partnership surgeries, bringing together agencies 

(such as housing and alcohol and drugs services) in one place. 

• Engagement stalls in busy public places within the CHB area (e.g., outside a supermarket) 

collecting views on issues in the area. 

• Community meetings (such as coffee mornings) and workshops, which can be used to set 

priorities for the CHB programme and inform the ODGs. 

 

BUILD 

Page 54

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 3



 

 

The Build delivery plan will document the key objectives and delivery principles of the Build 

Phase.   

This will contribute towards the provision of sustained improvements, ensuring the project 

stays focussed and continues to provide improvements to the local area, facilitating positive 

engagement with third sector organisations, providing a platform for meaningful community 

engagement.  

A key success of the build phase will rely on the continued partnership working fostered as 

part of the hold phase, providing an environment for the local community to thrive and 

prevent the re-emergence of organised crime. 

To build sustainable resilience within the community the following delivery themes have 

been identified: 

 Housing 

 Antisocial behaviour 

 Environmental 

 Women and Girls 

 Youth Voice 

 Employability  

 

Each theme will have an identified lead officer responsible for creating long term 

sustainable change within their specialism, focussing on building community engagement 

and sustainability within each area.  Each theme will have dedicated objectives to ensure we 

are supporting the most vulnerable in the local community and encourage ownership from 

the community, third sector and local businesses. 

 

1. Housing – Lead Officer Kirsten Pavitt, Town & Country Housing 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Objectives to 
Achieve the Aim 

 
 
 

To work in partnership to prevent and deter housing related issues 
linked to Organised Crime 

1.1 To maximise the full range of proportionate interventions to deter 
and stop anti-social behaviour 
 

1.2 – To involve local community members in our response to housing 
issues 

1.3 – To provide engaging forums and mechanisms to engage with us 
in relation to housing issues in their area. 
 

1.4 – To fully implement the commitment within the housing charter 

Page 55

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 3



 

 

 
 
 
 

Headline 
performance 

measures 

 
Number of housing enforcement tools utilised to tackle ASB/OCG 
activity in the area 

Number of housing reports related to ASB 
 

Number of joint working events undertaken.  Eg. Attendance at estate 
walkabouts 
 

 

 

2. Anti Social Behaviour – Lead Officer Insp Pearson and Sgt Pegg, Surrey 

Police 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Objectives to 
Achieve the Aim 

 
 
 

Work in partnership to prevent and deter Organised Crime and ASB. 

1.1 To maximise the full range of proportionate interventions to deter 
ASB. 

 

1.2 – To undertake targeted police operations within the local area to 
increase visibility and raise public perception. 

1.3 – Utilise attendance at JAG and the Delivery Coordination Groups, 
varying times to encourage additional attendance at meetings to 
share positive outcomes and steer future work dependent on the 
communities perceived needs. 
 

 
 
 
 

Headline 
performance 

measures 

 
ASB incidents per 100 population 

Number of proactive patrols undertaken by Surrey Police 
 

Number of fixed penalties and prosecutions for drug related crime 
 

Reduction in community members reporting issues related to drug 
related crime  

 

 

 

 

3. Environmental – Sam Whitehead, Epsom & Ewell BC 

 

Page 56

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 3



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Objectives to 
Achieve the Aim 

 
 
 

To sustain a clean and pleasant local environment improving 
residents’ perceptions of where they live building local pride and 

confidence. 

1.1 To undertake key environmental impact days in the local area 
improving community pride. 

 

1.2 – To plan and deliver local community events, increasing visibility 
within the local community. 

1.3 – Optimise opportunities to work with community volunteers to 
keep neighbourhoods free of environmental crime. 
 

 
 
 
 

Headline 
performance 

measures 

 
Number of targeted interventions  

Number of CPN/enforcement notices issued relating to environmental 
crime. 
 

Number of community members/volunteers engaged with at 
community events. 
 

 

 

 

 

4. Youth Voice –Holly Ashby, Adolescent services Surrey County Council 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Objectives to 
Achieve the Aim 

 
 
 

To promote the voice, influence, and participation of young people. 

1.1 Raise a positive profile for young people. 

1.2 – Provide opportunities for young people to have their voice 
heard. 

1.3 – Ensure that the contributions of young people are taken 
seriously and acted upon. 

 
 
 
 

 
Number of opportunities provided to facilitate youth voices within the 
local community. 

Number of young people actively included in listening exercises. 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 3



 

 

Headline 
performance 

measures 

Number of young people engaged in activities to promote youth 
involvement. 
 

 

 

 

5. Women and Girls – Sarah McLeod 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Objectives to 
Achieve the Aim 

 
 
 

To improve women and girls’ access to opportunities and resources 
within the local community. 

1.1 To provide specific interventions within the community focussed 
upon empowering women and girls. 

1.2 – To create supportive opportunities that enable women and girls 
in the local community to thrive, feel safe, and have their strengths 
recognised and valued.  

1.3 – To provide opportunities to ensure women and girls have their 
voice heard within the local community. 

 
 
 
 

Headline 
performance 

measures 

Number of women engaged in bespoke interventions within the local 
community. 

% Of women and girls supported by Victim and Witness Support 
Services reporting a positive outcome. 
 

Number of people engaged with regarding active bystander during 
community engagement events and number of personal safety 
equipment kits handed out.  
 

 

 

6. Employment – Sarah Watson 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Objectives to 
Achieve the Aim 

 
 
 

To provide interventions to increase employment opportunities and 
retention for individuals. 

1.1 Effectively engage with local employers and education services to 
provide appropriate opportunities to raise aspirations of community 
members. 

1.2 – To create targeted communications to advertise employment 
opportunities with local employers in the area. 

1.3 – Work with local employers to strengthen job opportunities 
within the local area. 

Page 58

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 3



 

 

 
 
 
 

Headline 
performance 

measures 

 
Number of targeted employment events undertaken in the local 
community. 

Number of local employers supporting schemes to offer jobs for local 
people. 
 

Number of local individuals who have accessed employment following 
interventions received via the interventions provided. 
 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Crime and Disorder Committee  
24 February 2026  

 

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR PLEDGE 

 

Head of Service: Rod Brown, Head of Housing & Community 

Report Author Oliver Nelson 

Wards affected: (All Wards); 

Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No 

If yes, reason urgent decision 
required: 

 

Appendices (attached):  None 

 

Summary 

Report recommending the Council renew the Anti-Social Behaviour Pledge. 

 

Recommendation (s) 

The Committee is asked to: 

(1) Agree to renew the Anti-Social Behaviour Pledge. 

(2) Nominate and authorise the Public Protection Manager and the Community 
Safety and Enforcement Officer to take the necessary steps to renew and 
sign the pledge. 

 

1 Reason for Recommendation 

1.1 In partnership with other agencies, the Council has a role in dealing with 
certain instances of anti-social behaviour (ASB), in the Borough and for 
the operation of the Community Safety Partnership within which the ASB 
Case Review process operates. 

1.2 The Council first made the pledge in the summer of 2022 following a 
policy decision by the previous Environment and Safer Communities 
Committee. 

1.3 Recently the charity ASB Help, have invited the Council to re-commit 
following some strengthening of the pledge and the best practice is to 
renew after time has passed to ensure a continued commitment. 

1.4 Working with ASB Help through the pledge will ensure the Council 
continues to retain a best practice approach with this service to the 
Epsom and Ewell community. 

Page 61

Agenda Item 5



Crime and Disorder Committee  
24 February 2026  

 

2 Background 

2.1 The ASB Pledge is advocated by ASB Help to support the victim’s voice 
and in particular, to promote consistency in the application of the ASB 
Case Review process.  This is the process, set out in law, whereby victims 
of ASB can request a multiagency review of their case.  ASB Help have 
identified regional inconsistencies in the application of this review process 
which the pledge seeks to address. 

2.2 Surrey Police, one of the Council’s key partners within the Community 
Safety Partnership completed their renewal in June of 2025. 

2.3 In order to implement the requirements of the pledge, officers will 
complete a questionnaire for review by ASB Help, ensure that processes 
and procedures are in alignment with the recommended approach and, 
subject to the permission of the victim, invite ASB Help to the next suitable 
ASB Case Review panel for validation. 

3 Risk Assessment 

Legal or other duties 

3.1 Equality Impact Assessment 

3.1.1 There is expected to be a positive impact on all members of society 
but particularly those who may be marginalised through exposure to 
ongoing ASB. 

3.2 Crime & Disorder 

3.2.1 There is expected to be a positive impact on the ability of the 
council and partner agencies to address ASB, particularly those 
more difficult cases which result in the use of the ASB Case Review 
process. 

3.3 Safeguarding 

3.3.1 There is likely to be a positive impact on safeguarding. 

3.4 Dependencies 

3.4.1 There are no known dependencies 

4 Financial Implications 

4.1 There are no financial implications to this proposal.  Costs associated with 
the investigation and resolution of ASB issues, and of resourcing ASB 
Case Reviews are met from the existing budget. 

4.2 Section 151 Officer’s comments: None other than as set out in the 
above report. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 5



Crime and Disorder Committee  
24 February 2026  

 

5 Legal Implications 

5.1 There are no statutory requirements to adhere to the ASB help service but 
it is seen as good practice. The pledge encourages the use of the ASB 
Case Review process, a legal mechanism for victims to request a review 
of their case. 

5.2 Legal Officer’s comments: None other than as set out in the above 
report. 

6 Policies, Plans & Partnerships: 

6.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged: 

  Safe and Well 

6.2 Service Plans: The matter is not within the current Service Delivery Plan. 

6.3 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: None 

6.4 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: There is a 
positive impact on community safety. 

6.5 Partnerships: The council works within an existing statutory Community 
Safety Partnership (CSP) in this area. 

6.6 Local Government Reorganisation Implications: None for the 
purposes of this report.  It is expected that the pledge will be maintained 
for the remaining existence of the council with the successor authority 
arriving at their own policy in this area in due course. 

7 Background papers 

7.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows: 

Previous reports: 

 Environment and Safe Communities Committee – 25 January 2022 

Other papers: 

 ASB Help “The ASB Help Pledge” [online] accessed 12 January 
2026  

Page 63

Agenda Item 5

https://asbhelp.co.uk/practitioners-hub/the-asb-pledge/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 safer Epsom and Ewell update
	safer Epsom and Ewell update Appendix 1
	safer Epsom and Ewell update Appendix 2
	safer Epsom and Ewell update Appendix 3

	5 Anti-Social Behaviour Pledge

